
 
 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

Zoom Meeting – Friday, February 23, 2024 – 9:30 am 
 

Present: Jackie Gardner-Nix, Elaine Azzopardi, Tim Miller, Angela Grogan, Judy McLean, Cindy Anthony, Sharyl Ann 

Milligan, Stephen Beauchamp, Selena Forsyth, Sharron MacDonald, Trish Baird, Tina Stephens 

Adam Kolisnyk (CFO, CMH) Meaghan Spencer (Finance Manager, CMH) 

 

Regrets: Jessica Clarke 

Topic Discussion Decision/Action 

Board Education New CCN “Pen Pal Program”. Sarah Higgins, Program 

Assistant, highlighted the new CCN Pen Pal program.   

Presentation available on Board 
Portal. 

1.1 & 1.2 Quorum & 

Declaration of Conflict of 

Interest 

The meeting was called to order by Jackie Gardner-Nix 

who welcomed everyone. There was a quorum present, 

and no conflicts of interest were declared.  

No conflicts were declared.  

1.3.  Approval of Consent 

Agenda 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

 

Motion by:  Elaine Azzopardi to 

approve the consent agenda.  

2nd by: Cindy Anthony.   Carried. 

1.4 Approval of Agenda Approval of Agenda 

 

Motion by:  Angela Grogan to 

approve the agenda. 

2nd by: Sharron MacDonald. Carried. 

3. Business Arising from 

Minutes 

3.1 Bed Expansion Update 

Construction has started on time with no hiccups to 

date. As of today, the project is still within the $700,000 

budget. Completion is on target for April 1, and there 

has been no construction disruption to the residents of 

Ed’s House.  

 

For Information Purposes 

4. Board Business/Committee 

Matters 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.1 Finance Committee – CCN Q3 Results 

Judy Mclean shared the CCN Q3 results which were 

presented at Finance. CCN is sitting in a positive 

financial position, better than this time last year. This is 

due in part to strong budgeting.  

 

4.2 Foundation Update 

Currently there is a lot going on at the Foundation table. 

The Planned Giving Committee is meeting on a regular 

basis and working on a plan for long term sustainability 

for raising funds.  

 

The Foundation is working with SMM Law to review 

their bylaws to ensure compliance with the Ontario 

Motion by:  Judy McLean to 

approve the Q3 Results as 

presented.  

2nd by: Stephen Beauchamp 

Carried. 

 

 

For Information Purposes 

 

 

 

 

 



 Not-for-profit Corporations Act. Trish presented the 

Board with proposed changes to the bylaws so the 

Foundation can create some autonomy and no longer 

be an arm’s length entity of CCN. The following 

suggestions were made: 

1. Directors – Composition – Suggested that the 

wording read; “A minimum of 1 with a 

maximum of 3 CCN Board Members”. The 

board felt this would provide the Foundation 

with some flexibility in this area.  

2. Directors – Filling Vacancies – The Board felt 

comfortable with giving the Foundation the 

ability to fill their own vacancies without CCN 

Board approval.  

3. Members – Item 8.1 – The Foundation wishes 

to have their own Membership, and this will 

remove the ability of the CCN Board to be part 

of their membership and have a vote at their 

AGM.  CCN Board felt comfortable with this, 

although, CCN Board will need to be present at 

the 1st AGM to vote on the changes to the 

Foundation bylaws.  

 

4.3 OHT-N/Advisory Council Update 

There hasn’t been much movement with the OHT-N as 

they are still recruiting staff. The Advisory council has 

not met either.  

 

4.4 March Board Meeting 

It was originally proposed that the March Board 

meeting be in person, but Trish will be absent for that 

meeting so the meeting will be held on Friday, March 

22, at 10:00 am virtually.  

  

Trish will take these points back to 

the Foundation for further 

discussion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For Information Purposes 

 

 

 

 

For Information Purposes 

 

 

5.  Termination  Motion by: Selena Forsyth 

 
Next Meeting – Friday, March 22, 2024 – 10:00 am – Zoom 

 



 
 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

Zoom Meeting – Friday, January 26, 2024 – 10:00 am 
 

Present: Jackie Gardner-Nix, Elaine Azzopardi, Angela Grogan, Jessica Clarke, Cindy Anthony, Sharyl Ann Milligan, 

Stephen Beauchamp, Selena Forsyth, Sharron MacDonald, Trish Baird, Tina Stephens, Patti Aitken, Manager, 

Wellness Services.  

 

Regrets: Judy McLean, Tim Miller 

Topic Discussion Decision/Action 

Board Education CCN Wellness Services Update – Patti Aitken, Manager 

of Wellness Services, shared a high-level presentation 

outlining programs and services offered by the CCN 

Wellness department.  

Presentation available on-Board 
Portal. 

1.1 & 1.2 Quorum & 

Declaration of Conflict of 

Interest 

The meeting was called to order by Jackie Gardner-Nix 

who welcomed everyone. There was a quorum present. 

Jessica Clarke declared a conflict of interest regarding 

the CCN/CMH Admin Agreement. Jessica will not take 

part in the discussion.  

 

Jessica Clarke will not take part in 
the discussion around the 
CCN/CMH Admin Agreement.  

1.3.  Approval of Consent 

Agenda 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

Pull out Finance Committee minutes and move to 4.1.1 

for further discussion. 

Pull out Fundraising Committee minutes and move to 

4.5 for further discussion.  

 

Motion by: Angela to approve the 

amended consent agenda.  

2nd by: Selena.  Carried. 

1.4 Approval of Agenda Approval of Agenda 

 

Motion by: Cindy Anthony to 

approve the agenda. 

2nd by: Sharron MacDonald. Carried. 

3. Business Arising from 

Minutes 

3.1 Bed Expansion Update 

Trish informed the Board that a construction agreement 

with Dalren has been signed in the amount of $348,000 

to complete the 4 rooms. Oxygen and Suction are 

coming in at a cost of approx. $130,000. Change orders 

may be necessary as the project proceeds. Start date of 

construction is scheduled for Feb. 5, 2024, with a 

completion date of March 31. Beds will be operational 

immediately following construction. Trish will keep the 

board updated on progress.  

For Information Purposes 

4. Board Business/Committee 

Matters 

 

4.1 Finance Committee – CCN/CMH Admin Agreement 

The Finance Committee reviewed 2 proposals for 

Administrative/Financial services.  The proposals were 

Motion by: Stephen Beauchamp to 

approve the signing of the 

CCN/CMH Administration 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

compared in relation to services offered, cost and 

experience.  The recommendation was to accept the 

proposal from Campbellford Memorial Hospital for a 

three year agreement at an annual fee of $145,344.00 

with a 1% increase yearly and the option to renew for a 

second three year term.. The Finance Committee 

discussed that need for additional analytical work which 

could be outsourced as needed.  The Board felt 

comfortable with this recommendation.  

 

4.1.1 Finance Committee Minutes 

Board member asked for clarification from the Finance 

Committee on the review & submission of the 

Foundation Funding Request. This is a procedural 

process being set up for the request for funds which 

needs more discussion at the next Finance Committee 

meeting in February.  

 

4.2 Strategic Plan – Quarterly Update 

Trish provided a detailed Operational Plan document 

that aligns with the Strategic Directions. This is a 

working document that will be shared with the Board 

quarterly, outlining the key activities taken and 

personnel responsible to continue moving the Strategic 

Plan forward..  

 

4.3 Foundation Update – Quick update for the 

foundation, Stephen Beauchamp is now the Treasurer. 

Bylaws are currently being reviewed and will be 

discussed at their Feb. meeting. Two of the new rooms 

at Ed’s House have been financially spoken for. 

 

4.4 OHT-N Update/Advisory Council 

OHT-N Collaboration Council had their 1st meeting in 

January since November. Still in the process of 

recruiting staff so not a lot of activity to report on. This 

is the same with the Governance Advisory Council, 

things are on hold until staff have been hired.  

 

4.5 Fundraising Committee 

Elaine wanted to inform the Fundraising Committee 

that although the cupcake fundraiser may not have 

yielded a huge financial windfall, community spirit was 

totally behind the event.  

Agreement from March 31, 2024 – 

March 31, 2027. 

2nd by: Angela Grogan 

Carried 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For Information Purposes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For Information Purposes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For Information Purposes 

 

 

 

 

 

For Information Purposes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For Information Purposes 

5.  Termination  Motion by: Selena Forsyth 



 
Next Meeting – Friday, February 23, 2024 – 10:00 am – Zoom 



 
 
 

 
 

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

Zoom Meeting – Friday, February 9, 2024 – 9:00 am 

 

Present:  Judy McLean, Jackie Gardner-Nix, Donna Moulton, Stephen Beauchamp, Tim Miller, Angela Grogan, Trish 

Baird, Jordyn Boivin (Analyst, CMH), Adam Kolisnyk (CFO-CMH) Tina Stephens 

 

Regrets: 

Topic Discussion Decision/Action 

1. Quorum & 

Approval of Agenda 

The meeting was called to order by Judy McLean and a 

quorum was present.   

Motion by: Stephen Beauchamp to 

approve the agenda.  

Seconded: Donna Moulton 

Carried. 

2. Approval of Minutes 2.1 Approval of previous minutes – Jan. 12, 2024 

 

Motion by:  Stephen Beauchamp to 

approve the previous minutes. 

Seconded: Donna Moulton 

Carried. 

3. Auditor Engagement 3.1 Audit Planning Report 2023/2024  

KPMH submitted an Audit Planning Report for the fiscal 

year ending March 31, 2024. KPMG will come back to the 

Committee in early June with the Audit Findings Report 

once the final audit is complete.  

For Information Purposes 

 

 

  

4. Financial Statements 4.1 CCN Q3 Results 

CCN Q3 results were presented. CCN is operating in a 

balanced position, outperforming the prior year. Program 

stat numbers are bouncing back since COVID. Client 

surveys are being developed to garner feedback on 

programs.  

 

4.2 Internal Controls 

Jordyn Boivin circulated the Q3 internal controls which 

have been signed by Adam Kolisnyk and Trish. 

Motion by: Tim Miller to accept the 

Q3 results as presented. 

Seconded: Jackie Gardner-Nix 

Carried. 

 

 

 

For Information Purposes 

 

 

5. Work Plan Items 5.1 Budget Approval (Assumptions for 24/25) 

Trish circulated a 2024/2025 CCN Budget Key 

Assumptions and Risks document. No budget submission 

to Ontario Health is necessary this year. CCN will develop 

its own budget to present to the Finance Committee and 

for Board approval soon. Adam and Jordyn will discuss 

out of meeting a timeline for the preparation and 

presentation of the budget and let Trish know. Adam is 

For Information Purposes  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



confident it can be created before the end of the fiscal 

year.  

 

5.2 Review & Submission of Foundation Funding Request 

Conversation will have to take place on how CCN wishes 

to put together a funding request from the Foundation.  

One possibility would be a yearly request be put forth 

with the funds being disbursed on a quarterly basis. This 

will be brought forth to the Committee for further 

discussion at a later meeting.  

 

 

 

For Discussion 

6. Policy Review The Committee will review the below policies at the next 

meeting along with the budget.  

1. F-10 – Annual Audit 

2. F-20 – Banking 

3. F-30 – Budget Preparation 

4. F-90 – Fees held in Trust 

5. F-160 – Capital Purchasing 

 

7. Termination  Jackie made the motion to 

terminate. 

 
Next Meeting: TBD – 9:00 am - Zoom 



1

Community Care 
Northumberland
Audit Planning Report
for the year ended March 31, 2024

Prepared for  presentat ion to the Finance & Audit  Committee 

meeting on February 9th, 2024

kpmg.ca/audit

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/services/audit.html


2

KPMG contacts
Key contacts in connection with this engagement

Katie Mahon, CPA, CA, LPA
Lead Audit Engagement Partner

613-541-7340

kmahon@kpmg.ca

Tatiana Lacerda
Audit Manager

613-541-7362

tatianalacerda@kpmg.ca

mailto:lahuber@kpmg.ca
mailto:email@kpmg.com


3

Table of contents

4 Highlights 8 Risk assessment

14 Independence 15 Appendices

The purpose of this report is to assist you, as a member of the Finance & Audit Committee (the “Committee”), in your review of the plan for our audit of the 

financial statements. This report is intended solely for the information and use of Management, the Committee, and the Board of Directors and should not be 

used for any other purpose or any other party. KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as 

this report to the Committee has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third party or for any other purpose.

13 Key milestones and 
deliverables

Digital use 
information
This Audit Planning Report 

is also available as a 

“hyper-linked” PDF 

document. 

If you are reading in 

electronic form (e.g. In 

“Adobe Reader” or “Board 

Books”), clicking on the 

home symbol on the top 

right corner will bring you 

back to this slide. 

Click on any item in the 

table of contents to 

navigate to that section.

6 Audit strategy



4

Audit highlights Matters to report – see link for detailsNo matters to report

Scope
Our audit of the financial statements of the Community care Northumberland (the “Organization”) as of and for the year ending March 31, 2024 will be 

performed in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.

Other significant risks

Risk 
assessment 

Presumed risk of fraudulent revenue recognition

Other risks of material misstatement

• Cash and long-term debt

• Capital assets and deferred capital contributions

• Revenue and related deferred revenue, payables and 
receivables

• Expenses and related accruals

• Financial reporting

Audit strategy Involvement of others

Materiality $125,000

Updates to our prior year audit plan 

Risk of management override of controls

Newly effective 
accounting 
standards

Newly effective 
auditing 

standards

Newly effective changes to auditing standards

There are no newly effecting accounting 

standards

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables

Upcoming changes to auditing standards

There are upcoming changes to accounting 

standards



5

Technology highlights

Summary of 
advanced 

technologies

IDEA – Journal Entry Routine – This tool is used to evaluate the completeness of 

the journal entry population through a roll-forward of 100% of the general ledger 

accounts.

DataSnipper – an Excel based audit tool, which allows us to extract, search, 

document and review PDF documents. The tool also provides automated document 

matching features allowing you to match data with underlying source documents.

DataSnipper – Financial Statement Suite - This solution is used to process 

financial statements in order to automate the verification of mathematical accuracy, 

prior period consistency and internal consistency of the audited financial statements.

MUS and KSP - These tools are KPMG designed routines used to select samples 

based on size risk to meet the requirements of our engagement in the most efficient 

matter.

KPMG Clara Workflows and Analytics – This suite of available analytics tools is 

used to assist with risk assessment, planning and substantive procedures 

throughout the course of the audit. 

Offset Remover - This tool automates the removal of offsetting entries in a dataset, 

allowing for the cleansing of large source material.

We have technologies in our toolkit to continue to enhance the quality and effectiveness of the audit.

KPMG Clara

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables



6

Materiality

We initially determine materiality to provide a basis for: 

• Determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures;

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement; and 

• Determining the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.

We design our procedures to detect misstatements at a level less than materiality in 

individual accounts and disclosures, to reduce to an appropriately low level the 

probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds 

materiality for the financial statements as a whole.  

We also use materiality to evaluate the effect of:

• Identified misstatements on our audit; and

• Uncorrected misstatements, if any, on the financial statements and in forming our 

opinion.

We initially determine materiality at a level at which we consider that

misstatements could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users. Determining materiality is a matter of professional
judgement, considering both quantitative and qualitative factors, and is

affected by our perception of the common financial information needs of users

of the financial statements as a group. We do not consider the possible effect

of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely.

We reassess materiality throughout the audit and revise materiality if we

become aware of information that would have caused us to determine a

different materiality level initially.

Plan and perform the audit

Evaluate the effect of misstatements

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables



7

Initial materiality

Prior year total expenses

$6,050,000
(2023: $5,410,000)

Prior year total revenue

$6,175,000 
(2023: $5,440,000)

2.31%

2.07%

Materiality as a percentage of total expenses -
prior year

Materiality as a percentage of total expenses -
current year

2.30%

2.02%

Materiality as a percentage of total revenue -
prior year

Materiality as a percentage of total revenue -
current year

% of Other Relevant Metrics

% of Benchmark

Materiality

$125,000
(2023: $125,000)

Initial materiality has been set using the prior year audited financial statements. Performance materiality has been set at 75% of materiality or $93,750. Professional standards require us to 

re-assess materiality at the completion of our audit based on period-end results or new information in order to confirm whether the amount determined for planning purposes remains 

appropriate. Our assessment of misstatements, if any, in amounts or disclosures at the completion of our audit will include the consideration of both qualitative and quantitative factors.

We will report:
Corrected audit misstatements

Uncorrected audit misstatements

Errors and omissions in disclosure (corrected and uncorrected)

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables



8

Risk assessment summary
Our planning begins with an assessment of risks of material misstatement in your financial statements. 

We draw upon our understanding of the Organization and its environment (e.g. the industry, the wider economic 

environment in which the business operates, etc.), our understanding of the Organization’s components of its system 

of internal control, including our business process understanding.

Risk of 
fraud

Risk of 
error PY risk rating

 Management Override of Controls (Presumed)  Significant

 Cash and long-term debt  Base


Capital assets and deferred capital 

contributions
 Base


Revenue and related deferred revenue, 

payables and receivables
 Base

 Expenses and related accruals  Base

 Financial reporting  Base

 SIGNIFICANT RISK   PRESUMED RISK OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT  OTHER RISK OF MATERIAL MISTATEMENT

Advanced 
technologies

Click to learn more

Our KPMG Clara 
DataSnipper is an 

automated vouching tool

uses advanced Optical 

Character Recognition to 

automatically vouch 

unstructured data like 

invoices and contracts with a 

click of a button! This tool will 

be used throughout the audit 

allowing our teams to focus 

more attention on areas of 

higher risk.

Advanced 
technologies

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables

https://players.brightcove.net/3755095886001/default_default/index.html?videoId=6273876005001


9

Significant risks
Management Override of Controls (non-rebuttable significant risk of material misstatement)

RISK OF

FRAUD

Why is it significant?

Management is in a unique position to perpetrate 

fraud because of its ability to manipulate accounting 

records and prepare fraudulent financial statements 

by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be 

operating effectively. Although the level of risk of 

management override of controls will vary from entity 

to entity, the risk nevertheless is present in all entities.

Our planned response

As this presumed risk of material misstatement due to fraud is not rebuttable, our audit 

methodology incorporates the required procedures in professional standards to address 

this risk. These procedures include: 

• testing of journal entries and other adjustments,

• performing a retrospective review of estimates

• evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual transactions.

Presumption 
of the risk of fraud 

resulting from 
management 
override of 

controls

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables



10

Significant risks (continued)

Relevant inherent risk factors affecting our risk assessment

Generally, there are pressures or incentives on management to commit fraudulent financial reporting through inappropriate revenue recognition when performance is measured in 

terms of year-over-year revenue growth or profit.

The Organization not publicly traded, is not incentivized to meet analyst expectations of revenue, and does not sell goods or services with complex contracts as its main line of 

business. The Organization receives most of its revenue through grants which are generally viewed as non-judgmental and routine. Any risks related to adjustments made to the 

financial statement amounts at year end are addressed in the risk identified below and as part of our audit approach.

The fraud risk related to revenue recognition has been rebutted for the purposes of this audit.

Our audit approach

Presumed risk of fraud involving improper revenue recognition
RISK OF

FRAUD

Why is it significant?

As is common with charitable and not-for-profit organizations, we have not identified any risk of material misstatement resulting from fraudulent revenue 

recognition, and as a result have rebutted this fraud risk.

Presumption 
of the risk of 

fraud involving 
improper 
revenue 

recognition

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables



11

Other risks of material misstatement

Cash and long-term debt – Direct confirmation with third parties of cash and debt balances.

– Review of bank reconciliations and vouch significant reconciling items to 

supporting documentation.

– Agree long-term debt repayments to supporting schedules and agreements. 

Capital assets and deferred capital 
contributions 

– Vouch significant additions and disposals to supporting documentation. 

– Review of repair and maintenance expenses for proper accounting 

treatment. 

– Review presentation of capital asset note disclosure. 

– Perform analytical audit procedures to ensure reasonableness of 

amortization. 

– Enquire as to the impairment of any capital assets.

Revenue
(including related deferred revenue, 

payables and receivables)

– For amounts receivable at year-end, we will assess the collectability of the 

receivable balance.

– Complete substantive audit procedures to address the relevant assertions, 

including confirmation of cash flows during the year and verification of any 

significant performance criteria, if any. 

– Vouch a sample of revenue to supporting documentation.

– Obtain and vouch a sample of donations to supporting documentation.

– Perform analytical procedures and investigate significant variances.

Our planned responseAreas Level of risk due to error

Base

Base

These areas of audit focus may be revised because of new transactions or events at the Organization, or changes in systems, people, or structure, and/or the results of our audit procedures. 

We will communicate significant changes to our areas of audit focus to the Committee in our Audit Findings Report.   The audit procedures described under audit approach are based on

preliminary planning and may be adjusted as fieldwork is performed.   

Base

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables



12

Other risks of material misstatement (continued)

Expenses
(including related payables)

– We will complete substantive procedures over expenses (including payroll) 

as well as accounts payable and accrued liabilities, including vouching a 

sample of transactions to supporting documentation.

– Perform a search for unrecorded liabilities and recalculate significant 

accruals.

– Perform substantive procedures over operating expenses (including 

payroll).

Financial reporting – Review by the engagement partner to ensure the disclosure is consistent 

with current not-for-profit disclosure requirements and industry practice.

– Consider any indicators related to Organization’s ability to continue as a 

going concern and the related impact on financial reporting.  

Our planned responseAreas Level of risk due to error

Base

Base

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables



13

Key milestones and deliverables

• Kick-off with management

• Obtain and update our understanding 

of the Organization and its 

environment

January 2024
Planning & Risk Assessment

• Planning and initial risk assessment 

procedures, including:

• Involvement of others

• Identification and assessment of 

risks of misstatements and 

planned audit response for 

certain processes

• Identify IT applications and 

environments

• Evaluate the Organization’s 

components of internal control

• Perform interim substantive 

procedures

• Inquire of the Committee, 

management and others within the 

Organization about risks of material 

misstatement

• Preparation of audit plan

February 2024 
Interim fieldwork

• Complete year-end data extraction 

and processing activities

• Perform remaining substantive audit 

procedures

• Evaluate results of audit procedures, 

including control deficiencies and 

audit misstatements identified

• Review financial statement 

disclosures

• Closing meeting with management

May 2024
Year-End Fieldwork

• Present audit results to the  

Committee and perform required 

communications

• Board approval of financial 

statements

• Issue audit report on financial 

statements

June  2024
Reporting

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables



14

Independence - proposed fees for services
In determining the fees for our services, we have considered the nature, extent and timing of our planned audit procedures. Our fees below align with our RFP 2021-01, dated May 7, 

2021:

At least once annually, we will confirm our independence with respect to our role as external auditors of the Organization. The services detailed above are not prohibited, and 

threats to our independence, if any, resulting from the provision of the services will be eliminated or reduced to an acceptable level. 

Audit of the financial statements of the Organization $ 10,500 $ 10,250

Audit of the annual reconciliation report (“ARR”) $ 1,450 $1,400

Preparation of the T3010 charity return $ 1,450 $1,400

Prior period (actual)Description of service Current period (budget)

Independence

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables



15

Appendices

1 Required 
communications

2 Use of technology

6 Insights3 Audit quality

5 New auditing standards

4 Upcoming accounting 
standards



16

Appendix 1: Other required communications

CPAB communication protocol

The reports available through the following links were published by the 

Canadian Public Accountability Board to inform Audit Committees and other 

stakeholders about the results of quality inspections conducted over the past 

year:

• CPAB Audit Quality Insights Report: 2021 Annual Inspections Results

• CPAB Audit Quality Insights Report: 2022 Interim Inspections Results

• CPAB Audit Quality Insights Report: 2022 Annual Inspections Results

We are independent of the Organization, and we have a robust and 

consistent system of quality control.

Confidentiality of our clients’ information is an on-going professional and 

business requirement of both KPMG and our overall profession. In addition 

to our internal confirmation of independence of team members, we will 

request confirmation and acknowledgement of our policies regarding 

confidentiality of the Organization’s information.

Matters pertaining to independence and confidentiality

Report

A draft report will be provided at the completion of the audit which will 

highlight the form and content of the report.

Representations of management

We will obtain from management certain representations at the completion 

of the audit engagement.

Engagement terms

Unless you inform us otherwise, we understand that you acknowledge and 

agree to the terms of the engagement set out in the engagement letter and 

any subsequent amendments as previously provided by management.

Control deficiencies

On a timely basis, identified significant deficiencies will be communicated to 

the Committee in writing. Other control deficiencies identified that do not rise 

to the level of a significant deficiency will be communicated to management.

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables

https://www.cpab-ccrc.ca/docs/default-source/inspections-reports/2021-annual-inspections-results-en.pdf?sfvrsn=55b1df58_10
https://cpab-ccrc.ca/docs/default-source/inspections-reports/2022-interim-inspections-result-en.pdf
https://cpab-ccrc.ca/docs/default-source/annual-reports/2022-annual-report-en.pdf


17

Appendix 2: Use of technology

A better
audit 

experience

Streamlined client experience
And deeper insights into your business, translating 

to a better audit experience.

Secure
A secure client portal provides centralized, efficient 

coordination with your audit team.

Intelligent workflow
An intelligent workflow guides audit teams through 

the audit.

Increased precision
Advanced data analytics and automation facilitate a 

risk-based audit approach, increasing precision and 

reducing your burden.

KPMG Clara

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables



18

Quality essentially means doing the right thing and remains our highest 

priority. Our Global Quality Framework outlines how we deliver quality 

and how every partner and staff member contributes to its delivery.

Perform quality engagement sits at the core along with our commitment 

to continually monitor and remediate to fulfil on our quality drivers. 

Our quality value drivers are the cornerstones to our approach 

underpinned by the supporting drivers and give clear direction to 

encourage the right behaviours in delivering audit quality.

We define ‘audit quality’ as being the outcome when:

• audits are executed consistently, in line with the requirements and intent of 

applicable professional standards within a strong system of quality management; 
and 

• all of our related activities are undertaken in an environment of the utmost level of 

objectivity, independence, ethics and integrity. 

KPMG 2022 Audit Quality and Transparency Report

Appendix 3: Audit quality
How do we deliver audit quality?

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/services/audit/transparency-report.html


19

Appendix 4: Upcoming changes to accounting standards
Accounting changes

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables

Section 4411, Contributions Received by Not-for-Profit Organizations and amendments to Section 4400, Financial 

Statement Presentation are currently in exposure draft and include proposals that:

• Replace the current guidance with a single approach for recognizing revenue from restricted contributions.

• Provide specific guidance on special types of contributions, including contributed materials and services, capital 

asset contributions, and endowments.

• Amends the current guidance on financial statement presentation.

As the Organization currently follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, it is not expected that the 

proposed amendments, if adopted, will fundamentally change the Organization’s financial reporting.

We will continue to monitor the outcomes of the exposure draft and will work with management to fully understand the 

impact of any changes that occur related to the Organization’s financial reporting in this regard.  

Upcoming accounting standard



20

For more information on newly effective and 
upcoming changes to auditing standards 

- see Current Developments

Appendix 5: Newly effective and upcoming changes to auditing 
standards

ISA/CAS 220 ISQM1/CSQM1 ISQM2/CSQM2

ISA 600/CAS 600

Effective for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2022

(Revised) Quality 

management for an 

audit of financial 

statements

Quality management for 

firms that perform audits or 

reviews of financial 

statements or other 

assurance or related 

services engagements 

Revised special 

considerations –

Audits of group 

financial 

statements

Engagement quality 

reviews

Effective for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2023

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2020/11/current-developments.html


21

Appendix 6: Audit and assurance insights

KPMG Audit & Assurance Insights
Curated research and insights for audit 

committees and boards.

Board Leadership Centre
Leading insights to help board members 

maximize boardroom opportunities

Current Developments
Series of quarterly publications for Canadian 

businesses including Spotlight on IFRS, Canadian 

Securities & Auditing Matters and US Outlook reports.

Audit Committee Guide – Canadian Edition
A practical guide providing insight into current 

challenges and leading practices shaping audit 

committee effectiveness in Canada.

Accelerate 2024
The key issues driving the audit committee 

agenda in 2024.

Momentum
A quarterly newsletter with the latest thought-leadership 

from KPMG's subject matter leaders across Canada 

and valuable audit resources for clients.

KPMG Climate Change Financial 
Reporting Resource Centre
Our climate change resource center provides 

insights to help you identify the potential financial 

statement impacts to your business.

IFRS Breaking News 
A monthly Canadian newsletter that provides the latest 

insights on international financial reporting standards 

and IASB activities. 

Our latest thinking on the issues that matter most to Audit Committees, Board of Directors and management.

Highlights Risk assessment AppendicesAudit strategy IndependenceKey milestones and deliverables

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/05/audit-assurance-insights.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/market-insights/board-leadership.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2020/11/current-developments.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/11/audit-committee-guide-canadian-edition.html
https://kpmg.com/ca/en/home/insights/2023/11/accelerate.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2022/11/momentum-november-2022.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2021/06/climatechange-financial-reporting-resource-centre.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2021/06/climatechange-financial-reporting-resource-centre.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2010/03/international-financial-reporting-standards-ifrs.html


© 2024 KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 

global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a 

private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo 

are trademarks used under license by the independent member firms of the KPMG global 

organization.

kpmg.ca

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home.html


Q3 Financial Report
For the period ending December 31st, 2023

Prepared by: Jordyn Boivin

Prepared for: Finance Committee Version 1.4



Statement of Financial Position
For the 9 months ended December 31, 2024

Highlights:

• Total Assets & Liabilities have remained static 

for the quarter

• Liquidity* remains strong

*Liquidity is measured by an organization’s ability to cover short-

term obligations with easily-accessible cash.  This measure is 

called the Current Ratio, which is calculated as:

 Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilities 

CCN’s Current Ratio is 1.8, is very healthy & means the 

organization could easily cover all of its short-term liabilities.



Operating Statement
For the 9 months ended December 31, 2024

Highlights:

• CCN is operating in a balanced 

position, outperforming prior year 

results

• Higher 1x funding explains this 

improvement

• Forecast: based on the current run 

rate*, a negligible deficit ($2.3K) is 

expected at year-end

𝒓𝒖𝒏 𝒓𝒂𝒕𝒆 =
𝒀𝑻𝑫 𝐬𝐮𝐫𝐩𝐥𝐮𝐬 𝒐𝒓 𝒅𝒆𝒇𝒊𝒄𝒊𝒕

𝒑𝒆𝒓𝒊𝒐𝒅𝒔 𝒊𝒏 𝒚𝒆𝒂𝒓



Revenue Highlights:

Ontario Health Funding – The $313K favourable 1x funding variance was driven by:

• $250K for Hospice Services (confirmed in Q3 and received in early Jan), plus

• $54K relating to a 3% increase for CSS, and

• $6K relating to a 3% increase for PALC (confirmed in Q2; CCN has received $30K of that increase as 

of end of Dec).

Donations & Fundraising – $376K unfavourable variance was driven by a diversion of donations directly to 

the Foundation – this is expected to continue to year-end.  

Client Fees – $55K (8%) unfavourable variance driven by lower than expected demand for Meals on Wheels 

services due to increased price to cover inflationary pressures in food. 

Interest Income– $58K (432%) favourable variance driven by conservative budgeting and improved interest 

rates.

Additional funding & grants account for the bulk of top line performance



Expense Highlights:

Salaries & benefits – $54K (2%) unfavourable budget variance driven predominantly by retro pay. 

Equipment Maintenance/Purchase – $43K (88%) unfavourable variance driven by increased IT equipment 

needs & unexpected part replacements in transportation.

Occupancy – $33K (26%) unfavourable variance driven by unexpected building costs for Ed’s House.

Contracted Out Services – $24K (48%) unfavourable variance driven by:

• an increase in hired transportation due to higher than anticipated patient volumes, and 

• Increase use of brokered workers to satisfy higher than expected demand.

Fundraising – $17K (103%) unfavourable variance driven by underbudgeting.

Professional Fees – $15K (11%) unfavourable budget variance driven by higher than expected costs for 

consulting services to complete the design of the 4 Ed’s House suites as well as some IT processing costs.

Unexpected equipment & building costs are driving the majority of the total expense variance



Hospice Services
Statement of Operations

Highlights:

• Hospice Services is operating at a 

balanced position, however

• Ed’s house is reliant on Deferred 

Revenues to cover expenses – 

discussed on next slide

• Unexpected Ed’s House maintenance 

costs are coded under ‘Occupancy’ line 

item



Deferred donations cannot be used to fund Ed’s House indefinitely, however, a plan exists.

Discussion:

• Ed’s House is using an average of $60K of 

Deferred Revenue to balance the program 

each month. 

• Currently, $468K is sitting in hospice deferred 

revenue which means there is ~7 months until 

that money runs out.

• The plan going forward is to begin drawing 

cash from the Foundation to balance.

$695K remains in 

Deferred Donations



Highlights:

• High-Interest Savings 

Account has an average 

YTD interest rate of 

3.41%

• Cash is stable and 

forecasted to remain 

stable for the foreseeable 

future – no liquidity risk is 

forecasted at this time.

Cashflows are stable & the HISA is growing steadily







Appendix – Deferred donations detail



Memo 

 

To:  CCN Board of Directors 

From: Trish Baird 

RE:  Suggested Changes to Eds House Foundation By-Laws. 

 

The Foundation has been working with SMM Law to review their By-Laws so that they are compliant 

with the Ontario Not-for-profit Corporations Act.  The changes recommended by SMM Law are fairly 

standard with no extraordinary changes. 

While updating the current By-Laws, the Foundation would like to propose that it is time to expand the 

membership of the Foundation and begin to separate the ‘control’ that CCN Board currently has over 

many of the Foundation responsibilities and activities.  Recruiting additional community members will 

assist in increasing donations to the Foundation, create longer term strategic outcomes for the 

Foundation and heighten awareness and education both of the Foundation and the work that they are 

supporting through CCN Hospice Services.  

The main changes that the Foundation are as follows. 

1. Directors – Composition. – Item 2.1 

Currently the Board is made up of 5 Directors with 3 of those Directors being members of the Board of 

Directors of Community Care Northumberland. 

Proposed Change – The Board is to be made up of a minimum of 9 Directors and a maximum of 11 

Directors.  One of the Directors shall be a member of the board of directors of Community Care 

Northumberland. 

2. Directors – Filling Vacancies - Item 2.3 

Currently when the Foundation Board needs to fill a vacancy it must be done in consultation and with 

the approval of the board of directors of CCN.  

Proposed Change – A vacancy can be filled amongst the current Directors. 

3. Members – Item 8.1 

Currently – The membership of the Corporation (of the Foundation) is made up of the Foundation 

Directors and the Directors of Community Care Northumberland and any such other persons interested 

in furthering the Corporations purposes and who have been accepted into membership by approval of 

the board of directors of Community Care Northumberland. This would be for voting purposes at a 

‘Special’ or ‘Annual’ meeting. 

Proposed – The membership of the Corporation shall consist of the Directors and any such other persons 

interested in furthering the Corporations purposes and who have been accepted into membership by 

approval of the board of directors.  



4. Quorum of Member Meetings – Item 9.4 

Currently a quorum requires a majority of those present to be Directors of Community Care 

Northumberland Community Care Northumberland.  

Proposed – remove the requirement for Directors of CCN Board to be part of the quorum. 

 

I have attached the latest revised copy of the By-Laws that I received so that you can cross reference 

these sections for your information. The changes suggested in this document have not been 

incorporated into the By-Laws until there is consensus on these changes. 

Please review and we will discuss options at our Board meeting on Feb 23rd. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to connect with myself, Elaine, Stephen or Cindy who 

were part of the conversation at our Foundation meeting Tuesday Feb 13th. 

 

 

 



Ed’s House Northumberland Hospice Care Centre Foundation 

By-Law #1

Section 1 – General ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

1.1. Definitions .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

1.2. Interpretation..................................................................................................................................... 2 

1.3. Severability and Precedence .............................................................................................................. 2 

1.4. Seal ..................................................................................................................................................... 2 

1.5. Execution of Documents .................................................................................................................... 2 

2. Directors .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

2.1. Composition, Election and Term ........................................................................................................ 3 

2.2. Vacancies ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

2.3. Filling Vacancies ................................................................................................................................. 3 

2.4. Committees ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

2.5. Remuneration of Directors ................................................................................................................ 4 

2.6. Power to Direct Chief Executive Officer............................................................................................. 4 

2.7. Limitation on Delegation of Powers .................................................................................................. 4 

Section 3 – Board Meetings .......................................................................................................................... 5 

3.1. Calling of Meetings ............................................................................................................................ 5 

3.2. Regular Meetings ............................................................................................................................... 5 

3.3. Notice ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

3.4. Chair ................................................................................................................................................... 5 

3.5. Quorum and Voting ........................................................................................................................... 5 

3.6. Participation by Telephone or Other Communications Facilities ...................................................... 6 

Section 4 – Financial...................................................................................................................................... 6 

4.1. Banking ............................................................................................................................................... 6 

4.2. Financial Year ..................................................................................................................................... 6 

Section 5 – Officers ....................................................................................................................................... 6 

5.1. Officers ............................................................................................................................................... 6 

5.2. Office Held at Board’s Discretion ....................................................................................................... 6 

DRAFT



1 
 

5.3. Duties ................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Section 6 – Protection of Directors and Others ............................................................................................ 6 

6.1. Protection of Directors and Officers .................................................................................................. 6 

Section 7 – Conflict of Interest ...................................................................................................................... 7 

7.1. Conflict of Interest ............................................................................................................................. 7 

7.2. Disclosure - Directors ......................................................................................................................... 7 

7.3. Disclosure – non-Director Officers ..................................................................................................... 7 

7.4. Charitable Corporations ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Section 8 – Members .................................................................................................................................... 8 

8.1. Members ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

8.2. Membership ....................................................................................................................................... 8 

8.3. Disciplinary Act or Termination of Membership for Cause ............................................................... 8 

Section 9 – Members Meetings .................................................................................................................... 8 

9.1. The Annual Meeting ........................................................................................................................... 8 

9.2. Special Meetings ................................................................................................................................ 9 

9.3. Notice ................................................................................................................................................. 9 

9.4. Quorum .............................................................................................................................................. 9 

9.5. Chair of the Meeting ........................................................................................................................ 10 

9.6. Virtual Participation at Members’ Meetings ................................................................................... 10 

9.7. Voting of Members .......................................................................................................................... 10 

9.8. Adjournments .................................................................................................................................. 10 

9.9. Persons Entitled to be Present ......................................................................................................... 11 

Section 10 – Notices .................................................................................................................................... 11 

10.1. Service ............................................................................................................................................ 11 

10.2. Computation of Time ..................................................................................................................... 11 

10.3. Error or omission in notice ............................................................................................................. 11 

Section 11 – Adoption and Amendment of By-Laws .................................................................................. 11 

 

 
 

DRAFT



2 
 

Section 1 – General 

1.1. Definitions 

In this by-law, unless the context otherwise requires: 

1. “Act” means the Ontario Not-for-Profit Corporations Act, 2010, and includes the regulations 
made under it, as amended or re-enacted from time to time. 

2. “Articles” means the letters patent of the Corporation, the articles, or restated articles of 
incorporation or articles of amendment, amalgamation, continuance, reorganization, 
arrangement or revival of the Corporation; 

3. “Board” means the board of directors of the Corporation; 
4. “By-laws” means this by-law (including the schedules to this by-law) and all other by-laws of 

the Corporation as amended and which are, from time to time, in force; 
5. “Chair” means the chair of the Board; 
6. “Corporation” means the corporation that has passed these by-laws under the Act or that is 

deemed to have passed these by-laws under the Act; 
7. “Director” means an individual occupying the position of director of the Corporation by 

whatever name he or she is called; 
8. “Member” means a member of the Corporation; 
9. “Members” means the collective membership of the Corporation; and 
10. “Officer” means an officer of the Corporation. 

1.2. Interpretation 

Other than as specified in Section 1.1, all terms contained in this by-law that are defined in the Act shall 
have the meanings given to such terms in the Act. Words importing the singular include the plural and 
vice versa; words importing one gender include all genders; “person” includes an individual, body 
corporate, partnership, trust and unincorporated organization. 

1.3. Severability and Precedence 

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this by-law shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining provisions of this by-law. If any of the provisions contained in the By-laws 
are inconsistent with those contained in the Articles or the Act, the provisions contained in the Articles or 
the Act, as the case may be, shall prevail. 

1.4. Seal 

The seal of the Corporation, if any, shall be in the form determined by the Board. 

1.5. Execution of Documents 

Deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts, obligations and other instruments in writing requiring execution 
by the Corporation may be signed by any two of its Officers. In addition, the Board may from time to time 
direct the manner in which and the person by whom a particular document or type of document shall be 
executed. Any person authorized to sign any document may affix the corporate seal, if any, to the 

DRAFT



3 
 

document. Any Director or Officer may certify a copy of any instrument, resolution, by-law or other 
document of the Corporation to be a true copy thereof.  

2. Directors 

2.1. Composition, Election and Term 

1. The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by a Board of five (5) Directors. The Directors 
shall be Members of the Corporation. At least sixty percent (60%) of the Directors on the Board 
shall be members of the board of directors of Community Care Northumberland. The remaining 
Directors shall be elected from the community. 

2. Subject to the Articles, the Members will elect the Directors at the first meeting of Members and 
at each succeeding annual meeting at which an election of Directors is required, and the Directors 
shall be elected to hold office for a term expiring not later than the close of the third annual 
meeting of Members following the election. The maximum term of officer for a Director is six 
years, or two consecutive three-year terms. However, if a Director holds the position of Chair or 
Vice-Chair, they are entitled to one further three-year term. 

2.2. Vacancies 

The office of a Director shall be vacated immediately: 

1. if the Director resigns office by written notice to the Secretary, which resignation shall be effective 
at the time it is received by the Secretary or at the time specified in the notice, whichever is later; 

2. if the Director dies or becomes bankrupt; 

3. if the Director is found to be incapable of managing property by a court or under Ontario law; or 

4. if, at a meeting of the Members, a resolution is passed by at least a majority of the votes cast by the 
Members removing the Director before the expiration of the Director’s term of office. 

2.3. Filling Vacancies 

A vacancy on the Board shall be filled as follows: 

1. a quorum of Directors may fill a vacancy among the Directors, which shall be made in consultation 
with and shall be approved by the board of directors of Community Care Northumberland; 

2. if there is not a quorum of Directors or there has been a failure to elect the minimum number of 
Directors set out in the articles, the Directors in office shall, without delay, call a special meeting of 
Members to fill the vacancy and, if they fail to call such a meeting, the meeting may be called by 
any Member; 

DRAFT



4 
 

3. if the vacancy occurs as a result of the Members removing a Director, the Members may fill the 
vacancy by a majority vote and any Director elected to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the 
remainder of the removed Director’s term; and 

4. the Board may fill any other vacancy by a majority vote, and the appointee shall hold office for the 
remainder of the unexpired portion of the term of the vacating Director. After that, the appointee 
shall be eligible to be elected as a Director.  

2.4. Committees 

The Board may from time to time establish, appoint, or dissolve any committee or other advisory body, 
as it deems necessary or appropriate for such purposes and, subject to Section 2.7, with such powers as 
the Board shall see fit. Any such committee may formulate its own rules of procedure, subject to such 
regulations or directions as the Board may from time to time make. The Board shall determine the 
composition and terms of reference for any such committee. Any committee member may be removed 
by resolution of the Board. 

2.5. Remuneration of Directors 

The Directors shall serve as such without remuneration and no Director shall directly or indirectly receive 
any profit from his or her position as such, provided that a Director may be reimbursed reasonable 
expenses incurred by the Director in the performance of his or her duties. 

2.6. Power to Direct Chief Executive Officer 

1. The Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) shall be the Chief Executive Officer of Community Care 
Northumberland and the Board may delegate to that person full power to manage the business 
and affairs of the Corporation, subject to Section 2.7, and to employ and discharge agents and 
employees of the Corporation or may delegate to that person any lesser authority.  

2. The CEO shall conform to all lawful orders given by the Board and shall at all reasonable times 
give to the Board all information they may require regarding the affairs of the Corporation.  

3. The CEO may not be a Member and may not be appointed to the Board. 

2.7. Limitation on Delegation of Powers 

The Board may not delegate any of the following powers to any committee or advisory board 
established under Section 2.4 or the CEO referred to in Section 2.6: 

1. To submit to the Members any question or matter requiring the approval of the Members. 

2. To fill a vacancy among the Directors or in the position of auditor or of a person appointed to 
conduct a review engagement of the Corporation. 

3. To appoint additional Directors. 

DRAFT



5 
 

4. To issue debt obligations except as authorized by the Board. 

5. To approve any financial statements of the Corporation. 

6. To adopt, amend or repeal By-laws. 

7. To establish contributions to be made, or dues to be paid, by Members. 

Section 3 – Board Meetings 

3.1. Calling of Meetings 

Meetings of the Directors may be called by the Chair or any two (2) Directors at any time and any place 
on notice as required by this by-law, provided that, for the first organizational meeting following 
incorporation, an incorporator or a Director may call the first meeting of the Directors by giving not less 
than five (5) days’ notice to each Director, stating the time and place of the meeting. 

3.2. Regular Meetings 

The Board may fix the place and time of regular Board meetings and send a copy of the resolution fixing 
the place and time of such meetings to each Director, and no other notice shall be required for any such 
meetings.  

3.3. Notice 

Notice of the time and place for the holding of a meeting of the Board shall be given in the manner 
provided in Section 10 of this by-law to every Director not less than seven (7) days before the date that 
the meeting is to be held. Notice of a meeting is not necessary if all of the Directors are present, and none 
objects to the holding of the meeting, or if those absent have waived notice or have otherwise signified 
their consent to the holding of such meeting. If a quorum of Directors is present, each newly elected or 
appointed Board may, without notice, hold its first meeting immediately following the annual meeting of 
the Corporation. 

3.4. Chair 

The Chair shall preside at Board meetings. In the absence of the Chair, the Directors present shall choose 
one of their number to act as the chair of that meeting. 

3.5. Quorum and Voting 

Quorum at a meeting of Directors is achieved by the presence at that meeting of at least a majority of the 
voting Directors of the Corporation. Each Director has one vote. Questions arising at any Board meeting 
shall be decided by a majority of votes. In case of an equality of votes, the Chair shall not have a second 
or casting vote, and the motion shall fail. 

DRAFT



6 
 

3.6. Participation by Telephone or Other Communications Facilities 

If all of the Directors of the Corporation consent, a Director may participate in a meeting of the Board or 
of a committee of Directors by telephonic or electronic means that permits all participants to 
communicate adequately with each other. A Director participating by such means is deemed to be present 
at that meeting. 

Section 4 – Financial 

4.1. Banking 

The Board shall by resolution from time to time designate the bank in which the money, bonds or other 
securities of the Corporation shall be placed for safekeeping. 

4.2. Financial Year 

Unless otherwise ordered by the Board, the fiscal year of the Corporation shall be determined by the 
Board. 

Section 5 – Officers 

5.1. Officers 

The Board shall appoint from among the Directors a Chair, a Vice-Chair, and may appoint any other 
Directors to be Treasurer and Secretary at its first meeting following the annual meeting of the 
Corporation. The offices of Treasurer and Secretary may be held by the same Director and may be known 
as the Secretary-Treasurer. The Board may appoint such other Officers and agents as it deems necessary, 
and who shall have such authority and shall perform such duties as the Board may prescribe from time to 
time. 

5.2. Office Held at Board’s Discretion 

Any Officer shall cease to hold office upon resolution of the Board. If the office of any Officer of the 
Corporation shall become vacant, the Board may, by resolution, appoint a person to fill such vacancy. 

5.3. Duties 

Officers shall be responsible for the duties assigned to them and, subject to the Act, they may delegate to 
others the performance of any or all of such duties. The Board will determine, and from time to time 
review and update, the powers and duties of the Officers, subject to the Act. 

Section 6 – Protection of Directors and Others 

6.1. Protection of Directors and Officers  

DRAFT



7 
 

No Director, Officer or committee member of the Corporation is liable for the acts, neglects or defaults of 
any other Director, Officer, committee member or employee of the Corporation or for joining in any 
receipt or for any loss, damage or expense happening to the Corporation through the insufficiency or 
deficiency of title to any property acquired by resolution of the Board or for or on behalf of the 
Corporation or for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security in or upon which any of the money of or 
belonging to the Corporation shall be placed out or invested or for any loss or damage arising from the 
bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious act of any person, firm or corporation with whom or which any moneys, 
securities or effects shall be lodged or deposited or for any other loss, damage or misfortune whatever 
which may happen in the execution of the duties of his or her respective office or trust provided that they 
have: 

1. complied with the Act and the Corporation’s Articles and By-laws; and 

2. exercised their powers and discharged their duties in accordance with the Act. 

Section 7 – Conflict of Interest 

7.1. Conflict of Interest 

A Director or Officer who is in any way directly or indirectly interested in a contract or transaction, or 
proposed contract or transaction, with the Corporation shall disclose to the Corporation or request to 
have entered in the minutes of meetings of the Directors the nature and extent of his or her interest. 
Except as provided by the Act, no such Director shall attend any part of a meeting of Directors, or vote on 
any resolution, to approve any such contract or transaction. 

7.2. Disclosure - Directors 

The disclosure required by Section 7.1 shall be made, in the case of a Director: 

1. at the meeting at which a proposed contract or transaction is first considered; 

2. if the Director was not then interested in a proposed contract or transaction, at the first meeting 
after he or she becomes so interested; 

3. if the director becomes interested after a contract is made or a transaction is entered into, at the 
first meeting after he or she becomes so interested; or 

4. if an individual who is interested in a contract or transaction later becomes a director, at the 
first meeting after he or she becomes a Director. 

7.3. Disclosure – non-Director Officers 

The disclosure required by Section 7.1 shall be made, in the case of an Officer who is not a Director: 

1. forthwith after the Officer becomes aware that the contract or transaction or proposed contract 
or transaction is to be considered or has been considered at a meeting of Directors; 

DRAFT



8 
 

2. if the Officer becomes interested after a contract is made or a transaction is entered into, 
forthwith after he or she becomes so interested; or 

3. if an individual who is interested in a contract or transaction later becomes an Officer, forthwith 
after he or she becomes an Officer. 

7.4. Charitable Corporations 

No Director shall, directly or through an associate, receive a financial benefit, through a contract or 
otherwise, from the Corporation as it is a charitable corporation, unless the provisions of the Act and the 
law applicable to charitable corporations are complied with. 

Section 8 – Members 

8.1. Members 

Membership in the Corporation shall consist of the Directors, the directors of Community Care 
Northumberland, and any such other persons interested in furthering the Corporation’s purposes and 
who have been accepted into membership by approval of the board of directors of Community Care 
Northumberland. 

8.2. Membership 

1. A membership in the Corporation is not transferable and automatically terminates if the Member 
resigns, dies, or such membership is otherwise terminated in accordance with the Act. 

2. Members must be at least eighteen (18) years of age; not be a current employee; and be a resident 
of or carry on business in Northumberland County. 

8.3. Disciplinary Act or Termination of Membership for Cause 

Upon fifteen (15) days’ written notice to a Member, the Board may pass a resolution authorizing 
disciplinary action or the termination of membership for violating any provision of the Articles or By-laws. 

The notice shall set out the reasons for the disciplinary action or termination of membership. The 
Member receiving the notice shall be entitled to give the Board a written submission opposing the 
disciplinary action or termination not less than five (5) days before the end of the 15-day period. The 
Board shall consider the written submission of the Member before making a final decision regarding 
disciplinary action or termination of membership.  

Section 9 – Members Meetings 

9.1. The Annual Meeting  

The annual meeting shall be held on a day and at a place within Northumberland County fixed by the 
Board. Any Member, upon request, shall be provided, not less than twenty-one (21) days before the 

DRAFT



9 
 

annual meeting, with a copy of the approved financial statements, auditor’s report or review engagement 
report and other financial information required by the By-laws or Articles. 

The business transacted at the annual meeting shall include: 

1. receipt of the agenda; 

2. receipt of the minutes of the previous annual and subsequent special meetings; 

3. consideration of the financial statements that have been approved by the Board; 

4. report of the auditor or person who has been appointed to conduct a review engagement; 

5. reappointment or new appointment of the auditor or a person to conduct a review engagement for 
the coming year; 

6. election of Directors; and 

7. such other or special business as may be set out in the notice of meeting. 

No other item of business shall be included on the agenda for annual meeting unless a Member’s proposal 
has been given to the Secretary at least sixty (60) days prior to the date of the annual meeting, so that 
such item of new business can be included in the notice of annual meeting. 

9.2. Special Meetings 

The Board may at any time call a special meeting of the Members. The Board shall convene a special 
meeting on written requisition of not less than one-tenth of the Members, sent to every Director and the 
registered head office of the Corporation, for any purpose connected with the affairs of the Corporation 
that does not fall within the exceptions listed in the Act or is otherwise inconsistent with the Act, within 
twenty-one (21) days from the date of the deposit of the requisition. The written requisition must state 
the business to be transacted at the meeting. 

9.3. Notice 

Subject to the Act, not less than ten (10) and not more than fifty (50) days’ written notice of any annual 
or special Members’ meeting shall be given in the manner specified in the Act to each Member and to the 
auditor or person appointed to conduct a review engagement. Notice of any meeting where special 
business will be transacted must contain sufficient information to permit the Members to form a reasoned 
judgment on the decision to be taken. Notice of each meeting must remind the Member of the right to 
vote by proxy. 

9.4. Quorum 

A quorum for the transaction of business at a Members’ meeting is the higher of sixty percent (60%) or 
one-third of the Members entitled to vote, whether present in person, by proxy, or by telephonic or 
electronic means, provided that at least a majority of the Members in attendance are also members of 

DRAFT



10 
 

Community Care Northumberland.  If a quorum is present at the opening of a meeting of the Members, 
the Members present may proceed with the business of the meeting, even if a quorum is not present 
throughout the meeting.  

9.5. Chair of the Meeting 

The Chair shall be the chair of the Members’ meeting. In the Chair’s absence, the Members present at any 
Members’ meeting shall choose another Director as chair and if no Director is present or if all of the 
Directors present decline to act as chair, the Members present shall choose one of their number to chair 
the meeting. 

9.6. Virtual Participation at Members’ Meetings 

If all of the Members consent, a Member may participate in the meeting by telephonic or electronic means 
that permits all participants to communicate adequately with each other during the meeting. A Member 
participating by such means is deemed to be present at that meeting. 

9.7. Voting of Members 

Business arising at any Members’ meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes unless otherwise 
required by the Act or the By-law, provided that: 

1. each Member shall be entitled to one vote at any meeting; 

2. votes shall be taken by a show of hands among all Members present and the chair of the meeting, 
if a Member, shall have a vote; 

3. an abstention shall not be considered a vote cast; 

4. before or after a show of hands has been taken on any question, the chair of the meeting may 
require, or any Member may demand, a written ballot. A written ballot so required or demanded 
shall be taken in such manner as the chair of the meeting shall direct; 

5. if there is a tie vote, the chair of the meeting shall require a written ballot, and shall not have a 
second or casting vote. If there is a tie vote upon written ballot, the motion is lost; and 

6. whenever a vote by show of hands is taken on a question, unless a written ballot is required or 
demanded, a declaration by the chair of the meeting that a resolution has been carried or lost and 
an entry to that effect in the minutes shall be, in the absence of evidence to the contrary, conclusive 
evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of votes recorded in favour of or 
against the motion. 

9.8. Adjournments 

The Chair may, with the majority consent of any Members’ meeting, adjourn the same from time to time 
and no notice of such adjournment need be given to the Members, unless the meeting is adjourned by 
one or more adjournments for an aggregate of thirty (30) days or more. Any business may be brought 

DRAFT



11 
 

before or dealt with at any adjourned meeting which might have been brought before or dealt with at the 
original meeting in accordance with the notice calling the same. 

9.9. Persons Entitled to be Present 

The only persons entitled to attend a Members’ meeting are the Members, the Directors, the auditors of 
the Corporation (or the person who has been appointed to conduct a review engagement, if any) and 
others who are entitled or required under any provision of the Act or the Articles to be present at the 
meeting. Any other person may be admitted only if invited by the chair of the meeting or with the majority 
consent of the Members present at the meeting. 

Section 10 – Notices 

10.1. Service 

Any notice required to be sent to any Member or Director or to the auditor or person who has been 
appointed to conduct a review engagement shall be provided by telephone, delivered personally, or sent 
by prepaid mail, facsimile, email or other electronic means to any such Member or Director at their latest 
address as shown in the records of the Corporation and to the auditor or the person who has been 
appointed to conduct a review engagement at its business address, or if no address be given then to the 
last address of such Member or Director known to the Secretary; provided always that notice may be 
waived or the time for the notice may be waived or abridged at any time with the consent in writing of 
the person entitled thereto. 

10.2. Computation of Time 

Where a given number of days’ notice or notice extending over any period is required to be given, the day 
of service or posting of the notice shall not, unless it is otherwise provided, be counted in such number of 
days or other period. 

10.3. Error or omission in notice 

No error or omission in giving notice of any annual or general meeting or any adjourned meeting, whether 
annual or general, of the Members shall invalidate such meeting or make void any proceedings taken 
thereat and any Member may at any time waive notice of any such meeting and may ratify, approve and 
confirm any or all proceedings taken or had thereat. For the purpose of sending notice to any Member, 
Director or Officer for any meeting or otherwise, the address for any Member, Director or Officer shall be 
his last address recorded on the books of the Corporation.  

Section 11 – Adoption and Amendment of By-Laws 

1. The Members may from time to time amend this by-law by a majority of the votes cast.  

2. The Board may from time to time in accordance with the Act pass or amend this by-law other than 
a provision respecting the transfer of a membership or to change the method of voting by 
Members not in attendance at a meeting of Members. 

DRAFT



12 
 

Enacted [insert date, except where Corporation is deemed to have passed this by-law under Section 
18(1) of the Act.]. 

 
______________________________     _________________________ 
Gordon Ley, Chair       Date 
 
 
 
______________________________     _________________________ 
Beth Brook, Secretary-Treasurer      Date 
 

DRAFT


	6db76bfc-5ce2-4a7d-bc67-0df1194806da.pdf
	953b6b4b-b47b-4efe-8995-9f82e60a6e22.pdf
	8dbed5c7-ebd3-4e9b-bca8-ac2eb67df9a2.pdf
	Community Care Northumberland
	KPMG contacts
	Table of contents
	Audit highlights
	Technology highlights
	Materiality
	Initial materiality
	Risk assessment summary
	Significant risks
	Significant risks (continued)
	Other risks of material misstatement
	Other risks of material misstatement (continued)
	Key milestones and deliverables
	Independence - proposed fees for services
	Appendices
	Appendix 1: Other required communications
	Appendix 2: Use of technology
	Slide Number 18
	Appendix 4: Upcoming changes to accounting standards
	Appendix 5: Newly effective and upcoming changes to auditing standards
	Appendix 6: Audit and assurance insights
	Slide Number 22



	3bb5b251-ced4-4381-9373-91c6da96cb89.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11


